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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Mark Denette, Mayor,
and Members of the Board of Alderman
Town of Basile, Lomsiana

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemcents
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying hinancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-lype acfivities,
and each major fund of the Town of Basile, Louisiana as of and for the year ended Junc 30, 2022, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Basile, Louisiana’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

[n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all maicrial respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-typc activities, and each major fund of the Town of
Basile, Louisiana, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the ycar then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepled in the United States of America
and the swandards applicable to financial audits contained in Gavernment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenis section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Town of Basile, Louisiana and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ¢thical requirements relating 1o our audit. We belicve that the audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriaie (0 provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial staiements that are frec
from material misstatement, whether due to {raud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required o evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Basile, Louisiana’s ability 1o continuc as
a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement daie, including any currently known information
that may raisc substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as a whole are free from
malterial misstatcment, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepled auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it cxists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from (raud is higher than for one resulting from error, as {raud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

» [Exercise professional judgment and maintain protessional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the cffectiveness of the
Town of Basile, Louisiana’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as ¢valuate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Town of Basile, Louisiana’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing ol the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-relaied matters that we
identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison
information, schedule of employer’s share of net pension liability, and schedule of employer pension contributions
on pages 40-46 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 1s required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context, We have applied certain limited
procedures 1o the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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The Town of Basile, Louisiana has not presented management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America require (o be presented 1o supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic tinancial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on
the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Supplementary Iuformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Town of Basile, Louisiana’s basic {inancial statements. The accompanying combining fund financial
statements, the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head, the judicial system funding
schedule, and other schedules, as listed in the table of contents, arc presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records uscd to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. [n our opinion, the combining fund financial statements, the schedule of
compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head, the judicial system funding schedule, and other
schedules, as listed in the table of contents, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27, 2022, on our
consideration of the Town of Basile, Louisiana’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of ifs
compliance with ceriain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reperting and
compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Basile,
Louisiana’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of Basile, Louisiana’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

The prior year comparative information has been derived from the Town of Basile, Louisiana’s 2021 financial
statements and, in our report dated January 19, 2022, we expressed unmodified opinions on the respective financial
statements of the governmental and business-lype activities.

vithﬁ;ll?&?):jut d M

Eunice, Louisiana
October 27, 2022
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Statement ol Net Position
June 30, 2022

2022
Covemmental Business-Type
Activilics Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assels:
Cash and mterest-bearing deposits $ §73830 § 151,273 k) 1.025,103
Receivables, nel 62,980 106,948 169,934
Other assets - 2,847 2,847
Total current assets 936,816 261,068 1,197,884
Noncurrent assels:
Restncled assels:
Cash and interest-bearing deposits 2.385 160,484 162.869
Capital assels, nel 1,250,540 2,534,291 3,784 831
Total noncurrent assets 1252925 2,694,775 3.947,700
Total assets 2,189.741 2,955,843 5,145,584
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 60,190 13,212 73,402
LIABILITICS
Current liabilities:
Accounts and other payables 38716 42,848 81,564
Current portion of bonds payable 44,000 29,799 73,799
Total current liabilities §2.716 72,647 155,363
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 8.129 . 8,129
Customers deposits payable - 121,493 121,493
Bonds payable 219.750 465,239 (84,989
Net pension lability 154,707 33,960 138,667
Tolal noncurrent liabilities 382,586 620,692 1,003,278
Total labilities 465,302 693,339 1.158.641
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions 53,671 11,782 (5,453
NET POSITION
[nvested in capital assets, nel ol related debt 986,790 1,917,760 2,904 550
Restricted fordebt service 100 160,484 160,584
Unrestricted 744,068 185,690 920,758
Total net position b 1,730958 § 2,263,934 & 3,994,892

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of the basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Program Revenues

Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Fees, Fines Operating Capital Changes in Net Position
and Charges Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Activities Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Activities Acliviies Total
Govermmenital activities:
General government $ 154731 $ 86,488 s - $ 320723 S 61,480 $ - $ 61,480
Public safety:
Police 477,657 193,204 - {284,453} {284.453)
Fire 6,770 - - (6,770) (6.770)
Streets 247,158 6.760 - (240,378) - (240,378)
Parks and recreation 38.504 7.026 - - (31,478) - (31.478)
Interest on long-term debt 13,440 - - - (13.440) - (13.440)
Total govemmental activities 1,138,240 293478 - 329.723 (515.039) - (515,039)
Business-type activities:
Cas 168,606 251.688 - - - 83.082 83,082
Water 330,165 429173 13971 - 112,981 112.981
Sewer 209,358 187,690 - - - (21,668) (21.668)
Total business-lype activitics 708,127 868.551 13,971 - 174,395 174.395
Total $ 1,846367 S 1,162,029 S 13,971 S 329,723 (515,039) 174.395 (340.644)
General revenues:
Taxes —
Properiy taxes. levied for general purposes 223,819 223819
Sales and use taxes. levied for general purposes 261.587 261.587
Franchise and chain store taxes 71,298 - 71,298
Interest and investment eamings - 56 56
Miscellaneous 5,060 - 5.060
Nonenployer pension contribution 8,140 1,465 9.605
Transfers 208,339 (208,339) -
Total general revenues and trans fers 778,243 (206,818) 571,425
Changes in net assets 263,204 (32,423) 230,781
Net position - June 30, 2021 1,467,754 2,296,357 3,764,111
Net Position - June 30, 2022 $ 1,730,958 5 2,263,934 $ 3,994,892

7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF BASILE. LOUISIANA
Balance Sheel
Governmentatl Funds

June 30. 2022
General Special Tax Sales Tax Other
FFund Fund Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 573.296 S 113.062 $ 186,575 b 897 S 873,830
Receivables
Taxes - 5,294 = - - 5,294
Other 34,507 = - - 34,507
Restricted assets
Cash-demand accounts 2,285 100 - - 2,385
Total asscts _5% 615,382 $ 113,162 $ 186,575 _8% 897 $ 916,016
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 12,783 3 - 3 - $ - $ 12,783
Accrued liabilities 25,933 - - - 25,933
Total habilities 38,716 - - - 318,716
Fund balances:
Assigned - 113,162 186,575 897 300,634
Unassigned 576,666 - - - 576,666
Total fund balance 576,666 113,162 186,575 897 877,300
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 615382 _ 5 113.162 $ 186,575 3 867 $ 916.016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Reconciliztion of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement ol Net Position
June 30, 2022

Total fund balances for governmenta! funds at June 30, 2022 $ 877300

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the stalement
of net position is difTerent because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Thosc
assels consist of:
Land $ 47,730
Buildings, net of $903.756 accumulated depreciation 578,357
Equipment & other, net of $767,449 accumulated depreciation 624,453 1,250,540

Sales tax which were not measurable at ycar end and not
considered available as current financial resources a1 year end 23,185

Amounts related 10 pension recognition are not due and payable in the

cumrent period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds (143.188)

Long-term habilitics at June 30, 2022
Bond issue costs, net of $3,754 amortization 30,250
Compensated absences (8.129)

Bond payable {294,000) (271,879)

Total net position of govemmental activities at June 30, 2022 $ 1,730,958

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeits
Miscellaneous
I'otal revenues

Expenditures:

Current-
General government
Public salety:
Police
Fire
Streets and drainage
Parks
Capital outlay
Debl service

Principal retirement
[nterest charges
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of
revenucs over expendilures

Other financing sources (uses)
Insurance proceeds
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other linancing
sources {uses)

Net changes in fund balances
FFund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances —

Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2022

General Special Tax Sales Tax Other
FFund Fund Fund Funds Totals
$ 176,637 $ 118480 $256.031 S $ 551,148
67,978 - - - 67,978
18,510 - 18,510
103,826 - 105,826
454,947 - - - 434,947
301,898 118,480 256,031 - 1,176,409
321,563 - 2,813 30 324,406
454 675 - - - 454,675
4037 - - - 4,037
216,863 - - - 216,863
34615 - - 34,615
48,895 - 48,895
s - - 42,000 42,000
4 13,440 13,440
1,080,648 2.813 55470 1.138.931
{278,750} 118,480 253,218 (55,470) 37,478
3,000 - 3,000
592,272 . - 55,470 647,742
z {83.,270) (356,133) {439.403)
595,272 {§3.270) {356,133) 55.470 211,339
316.522 35,210 (102,915 248 817
260,144 77.952 289,490 897 628,483
$ 576,666 $ 113162 $ 186,575 3 897 $ 877.300

‘I'he accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic [inancial statements.
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended junc 30, 2022

Total net changes in fund balances at June 30, 2022 per Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances S 248,817

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities is dilferent because:

Governmenlal funds report capital outlays as expenditurcs.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assels is
altocated over their estimated useful lives and reporied as depreciation

expense.
Capnial outlay which is considered expenditures on Statemeni of
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances S 48,895
Depreciation expense lor the year ended June 30, 2022 (83.379) (39,484)

Repayment of principal on long-terin debl is reported in the governmental
funds as an expenditure, bul is reported as a reduction in long-term debi
in the statement of net position and docs not affect the statement of activitics. 42,000

Bond issue cost are included in the change in net position as they are amortized
aver the life of the debt. They are included in Fund Balance when due.
Amortization expense for the year (850)

Expenses included in the change in net position, but do not require the use of
current funds, and are not included in the change in fund balance
Compensated Absences (1,443)

Net effect of pension liability recognition 8,608

Revenues in the Statement of’ Activities that do not provide current

financial resources are not reported as revenues in the Tunds 3,536

Total changes in net assets at June 30, 2022 per Statement of Activities § 263,204

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Proprictary Funds
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2021
ASSETS 2022
Cash § 151273
Receivables:

Accounts receivable 100,948
Restricied assels

Cash — demand accounts 140,484

Interest-hearing deposits, at cost 26,000
Land 12,008
Utility property plant and equipment 6,313,560
Accunwlated depreciation (3,791,277}
Other assets 2.847

Total assets 2,955,843

DEFERRED QOUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outfows related to pensions 13,212
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 38,997

Accrued labilities 31,851

Payable fromrestricted assets -

Current portion of revenue bonds 29,799
Total current labilitics 72.647
Noncurrent liabilities:

Payable from resiricted assets-

Customers’ deposils 121.493
Revenue bonds payable 465,239
Net Pension Liability 33.960
Taotal noncurrent liabilities 620,692
Total liabilities 693,339

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related 10 pensions 11,782

NET POSITION
Investiment in capital assets,

net ofrelated debt 1.905.752
Restricted for debt service 160,484
Unrestricied 197,698
Total net position $ 2.263.934

101,935

157,392
20,000
12,008

6,285,411
{3.667,029)
3.600

2,997,643

17,900

8,613
3811

28,490

40,914

116,263
494,595
61,546

672,404

713318

5.868

1,979,034
177,392
139,931

S 2.296.357

The accompanying noles are an integral parl of the basic financial statements.



TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Proprictary Fund
Statement ol Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Nel Position
Year Ended June 30, 2022
With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 2021
Operating revenues:
Charges for services —
Gas sales % 239000 $ 279416
Water sales 411,164 412,357
Sewer service charges 177,457 190,979
Connection charges 9,103 16,847
Delinquent charges 17,213 19,077
Miscellancous revenues 14,614 7.106
Tolal operating revenues §68.551 925,782
Operating cxpenses:
Gas departiment 135929 130,808
Waler department 236.588 138,885
Sewer departiment 127,380 97,632
General and administrative 60,436 60,115
Depreciation 124,249 120,055
Total operaling expenses (84,582 547,495
Operating income 183.969 378,287
Nonoperating revenucs (expenses):
Intcrest income 56 19
Interest expense (23,109 (24.360)
CGrant revenue 13.971 181,952
Nonemployer pension contribution 1.465 1.889
Miscellaneous (436) (436)
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) {8,053) 139,164
Income before operating trans fers 175,916 337,451
Operating transfers in (out):
Operating transfers in 346,254 46,700
Operating transfers out {554.593) (500,640)
Total operating trans fers {208,339) (450,940)
Change in net position (32,423) 86,511
Net position. beginning 2,296,357 2,209.846
Net position, ending $ 2263934 S 2296357

The accompanying notes are an integral part ol the basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISTANA
Statement of Cash Tlows
Propriclary Funds
Year Cnded June 30, 2022

With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30, 202)

Cash flows fromoperating activitics:
Receipts from cusiomers
Payments to suppliers
Paymenis 1o employees
Other receipls
Net cash provided (used) by operating activitics

Cash flows fromnoncapital financing activities:
Cash received fromother funds
Nonemployer pension contribution
Cash paid 10 other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash Nows fromcapital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on revenue bonds payable
Interest and fiscal charges paid on revenue bonds
and notes payable
Other non operating cosls
Procecds from meter deposiis (net)
Proceeds from granis
Acquisition ol property, plant and equipmentl
Net cash provided {used) by capital and
related financing activities

Cash Nlows [rominvesting activities:
Interest on mvestments
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalemis, beginning of penod

Cash and cash cquivalents, end of period

2022

$ 847,459
{455.772)
(88.898)
14.614

317,403

346,254
1,465
(554,593)

(206,874)

(28.047)

(23,100)
(436)
5.230
13,971

(28.149)

(60.540)
56
56
50,045
261,712

$ 311,757

2021

$ 879301
(360.059)
(88,295)
2,106

438,053

49,700
1,889

(500,640

(449,051)

(26.797)

(24,360)

(436)
5,475
181,952

(219,050)

(83.216)

119
119

(94,005}

355.807

$ 261,712

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.



TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds (continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2022
With Comparative Totals TFor the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2022 2021
Reconciliation of operating income 1o net cash used by
operating activities:
Operating income $ 183,969 $378,287
Adjustments 1o reconcile operating loss 10 nel cash used by
operating activitics:
Depreciation 124 249 120,085
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in accounts reccivable (5,013) (37.486)
{Increase) decrease in inventory 759 (1.230)
Increase (decrcase) in accounts payable 30,384 {12,038)
Increase (decrease) in accrued habilities 40 175
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability (16,983) (9,710)
Nel cash provided (used) by operating activities S 317,403 $438,053
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents per statement
of cash flows to the balance sheet
Cash and cash cquivalents, beginning of period —
Cash - unrestricted $ 84,320 $ 190,800
Cash — restricied 177,392 165,007
Total cash and cash equivalems 261,712 355,807
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period —
Cash — unrestricted 151.273 84,320
Cash — restricted 160,484 177,392
Total cash and cash equivalents 311,757 261,712
Net increase (decrease) S 50,045 S (94,095)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Notes 1o Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Town of Basile, located in southwest Leuisiana, was incorporated on March 10, 1991, under the provisions of
the Lawrason Act. The town operaies under a Mayor-Board of Aldermen form of government which is five Aldermen and
one Mayor elecied by the citizens and conpensated for their services. The town has a population of approximately 2000 and

has 31 employees.

The accounting and reporting practices of the Town of Basile conform to generally accepted accounting principles
of the United States of Ametica as applicable (o governmental units. GAAP includes all relevant Gavernmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. Such accounting and reporting procedures also conform Lo the requirements of
Louisiana Revised Statutes 24:517 and to the industry audit gwde, Audits of State and Local Gevernmental Units, published

by the American Institule of Certified Public Accountants.

The following is a suinmary of certain sigmficant accounting policies:

A,

Financial reporting Entity

This report includes all funds which are controlled by or dependent on the town executive
and legislative branches (the Mayor and Board of Alderman). Control by or dependence on the
Town was determined on the basis of Tinancial accountability, budgei adoption, taxing authority,
authoriy 10 issue debt, election or appointment of soverning body, and other general oversight
responsibility. The town has no component units or fiduciary funds.

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS)

The statement of net position and statement of activities display infonnation about the
Town of Basile, the primary government, as a whole, They include all funds of the reporting
entity,. The sfatements distinguish  between  govermmental and  business-type  activilies.
Governmenital aclivities generally arc financed through taxes, intergovermmental revenues, and
other nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities arc financed in wholc or in part by fees
charged 10 external parties for goods or services.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between dircet expenses and program
revenues for the business-tvpe activilies of the Town and for each lunction of the Town's
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program
or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues
include {(a) fees, Mnes, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services ollered by the
programs, and (b) requirements of a particular program. Rc¢venues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues,

Fund Financial Statemenits

The accounts of the Town of Basile are organized on (he basis of funds each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. IF'und accounting is designed to demonstrate legal
compliance and to aid Mmancial management by segregating transactions relating to cerain
government functions or activities. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate
set ol seif-balancing accounts that comprise its asseis, liabilities, fund equily, revenues, and
expenditures, or expenses as approprialc.



TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Nates 1o Financial Statements {Continued)

Govermnment resources are allocated 10 and accounted for in individual funds based upon the
purposes for which spending activities are controlled.  The various lunds are grouped in the
financial statements in (his report, into four gencric fund types and two broad fund calegories. The
emphasis on fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each
displayed in a separate column. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of
the Town or meets the following criteria:

a. Towal assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, revenues, or
expenditures/cxpenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are al lcasl
10 percent of the corresponding 1otal for all funds of thal category or type; and

b. Total asseis, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least
S percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and emerprise funds
combined

The major funds of the Town are described below:
Governmental Funds — -
General Fund

T'he General Fund is the gencral operating fund of the Town. 1t is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue lunds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than expendable trusts or major capilal projects) that are legally resiricied o expenditures
for specific purposes.

Additionally. the Town reports the following fund types:
Debi Service Funds

Debt service lunds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
paymenti of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related cosls.

Proprietary FFund
Enterprise Fund

The Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operaled
in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing bedy is that
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services 10 the general public
on a continuing basis 10 be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or {(b) where the
governing body has decided the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and/or nel income is appropriate for capital mainienance, public policy, management control,
accountability or other purposes. The Town of Basile’s enterprise fund is the vtility fund. I
accounts for the provision of water, gas, and sewer services (o residents of the Town.



TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Measurement Focus/BBasis of Accounting

Mcasurement focus is term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within the
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when™ (ransactions are recorded
regardless of the measurement locus applied.

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of activities, both
govemmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic  resources
measuremcnl focus as defined in ittem b. below.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources™ measurement focus or
the “econoimic resources” measurement focus is used as appropniale:

a.  All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources™ measurement focus.
Only current linancial assets and hiabilities are eenerally included on their balance
sheets. ‘Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable
financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their
measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

b. The proprictary fund utilizes an “‘economic resources” measurement focus, The
accounting objectives of this measurement locus are the determination of operating
income, changes in nel position {or cost recovery). financial position, and cash
Mows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with
their activities are reported. Proprictary fund equity is classificd as net position.

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, both
governmental and business-type activilies are presenied using the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic assel used.

Revenues, expenses, pains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-
like wransactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

Governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are
recognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets. Sales (axes are
considered “measurable™ when collected by the collection agency and are recognized as revenue at
that ime. Ad valorem taxes are recognized as revenue in the year in which they arc billed. Fees
and non tax revenues arc recognized when reccived.  Grants from other governments are
recognized when qualifying expenditures are incurred.  Available means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafier (o pay current liabilities, usually 60 days,

Those revenues susceplible 10 accrual arc property taxes, grant revenues and interest
revenue,

When both restricted and unrestricied resources are available for use, it is the Town’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricied resources as they are needed.
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TOWN O BASILE, LOUISIANA
Notes 1o Financial Statements {Continued)

Cxpenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting
when the related fund liability is incurred except that accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay
are nol accrued and principal and interest on general Jong-term debt are recognized when due.
Purchases of various operating supplies are regarded as expenditures at the time purchased.

The proprietary fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. whereby
revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Bad debis are written off when accounts became worthless,

Transfers between funds that are not cxpected to be repaid are accounted for as other
financing sources (uses). These transactions are recorded when the transfers occur.

Program revenues

Program revenues included in the Statement of Activilies are derived directly from the
program itself or from parties outside the Town’'s taxpayers or citizenry, as a whaole; program
revenues reduce the cost of the function (o be financed rom the Town’s general revenues,

Allocation of indirect expenses

The Town repons all diveet expenses by lunction in the Statement of Aclivities. Direct
expenses are those that are clearly idemifiable with a function. Indirect expenses of other
functions are nol allocated (0 those functions, but are reported separately in the Siatement of
Aclivities. Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in the direct
expense ol each function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and
is reported separately on the Statement of Activities,

Capital Assels

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the
applicable governmemal or business-lype aclivilies columns in the government-wide financial
staiements. The Town has elected not to capitalize public domain (“infrastructure™) fixed assets
consisting of certain improvements other than buildings, including roads, bridges. sidewalks, and
drainage improvements, retroactively. All capnal assets are stated at historical cost or estimated
historical cost il actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets arc slated at their
estimated fair value on the date donated. Estimated amounts are immaterial in relation to 1olal
fixed assets, The town mainlains a threshold level of $5.000 or more lor capitalizing capital
assels.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital asscts is recorded as an allocated expense in the
stateinent of activities, witlh accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position.
Depreciation is provided over the assets’ estimaied usclul lives using (he straight-line mnethod ol
depreciation. The range of estimated useful tives by type of asset is as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Equipment S vears
Vehicles 7 years
Uuility system and improvements 25-50 vears
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Notes 1o [inancial Statements {Continued)

Budeets and Budgetary Accounting

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflecied in these
financial statements:

I The Town Clerk prepares a proposed budgel and submits same 10 Mayor and Board of
Aldermen no later than fificen days prior to the beginning of cach fiscal year.

2. A summary ol the proposed budget is published and the public notified that the proposed
budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called.

3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least 1en days afier publication of the
call for the hearing,.

4, Alter the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary lo finalize
and implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of a resolution prior to the
commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted.

5 Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program or
function to another or involving increases in eapendilures resuiling from revenues exceeding
amounts estimated require the approval of the Board of Aldermen.

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

7. Budgets for all lunds are adopled on a basis consistent with generally accepled
accounting principles of the United Stales of America. Budgeted amounts arc as originally
adopted or as amended from time (o time by the Board of Aldermen. The budget was amended
prior 1o the fiscal ycar and June 30, 2022.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for (he expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation, is not employed by the Town as an extension of formal budgetary

integration in the funds.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes amounts in demand deposit, interest — bearing demand, and time deposits.
Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and those investments with original maturities
of 90 days or less when purchased. Under staie law, the municipality may deposit funds in
demand deposits, inierest — bearing demand deposits, or lime deposits with state banks organized
under Louisiana law or any other state of the United States, or under the laws of the United States.

[nterest-bearing Deposits

Interest-bearing deposits are stated at cost. which approximates market.
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Statement of Cash Flows
FFor purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Enterprise [Fund considers all highly
liquid investments {mcluding restricted asseis) with a maturity of three months or less when

purchased 10 be cash equivalents.

Short Term Interfund Receivables / Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds
for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due
from other funds or due o other funds on the balance sheet. Short-term interfund loans are
classified as interfund reccivables/payables.

Prepaid ltems

Payments made 10 vendors lor services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2022,
are recorded as prepaid ilems.

Vacation and Sick Leave

The costs of leave privileges, computed in accordance with GASB Codification. is
recognized as a current year expenditure in the governmental funds when leave is acwally taken or
when employees (or heirs) are paid for accrued leave upon retirement or death, while the cost of
leave privileges nol requiring current resources is recorded in the government-wide [inancial
slatements,

Vacation nusl be 1aken in the year accrucd and cannot be carried over. A maximum of
three weeks of sick leave may be carried over for one vear and is payable al retirement of
employee only. The lability the Town might have in this regard at June 30, 2022, totals $8,129.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assels include cash and interest-bearing deposits of the proprietary lund that
arc legally restricted as (o their use. The restricted assets are related 1o the revenue bond accounts
and utility meter deposits. At June 30, 2622, there was $140.484 restricted for debt service.

Long-term Debt

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the
sovermment-wide or fund financial statements,

All long-term debt 10 be repaid from governmental and business-type resources is
reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The fong-tenn debt consists primarily
of the revenue bonds payable and utility imeler deposits payable.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as habilitics in the fund financial
statements, The debl proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal
and interest reported as expendilures. The accounting for proprietary fund long-term debt is the
same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide stalemenis.
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Notes 10 Financial Statements (Continued)

Deferred Quiflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows ol Resources

In some instances, the GASDB requires a government Lo delay recognition of decreases in
net position as expenditures until a luture period. In other instunces, governments are required (o
delay recognition of increases in net position as revenues until a uture period. In these
circumstances. deferred outflows of resources and delcrred inflows of resources resull [rom the
delayed recognition of expenditures or revenues, respectively. At June 30, 2021, the Town’s
delerred inflows and outflows of resources are antributable 10 its pension plans and other
postemployment benefit plan.

Equity Classifications

In the govermnent-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in
lhree components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net ol relawcd _debt — Consists of capilal assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowing that are attributable to the
acquisition, censtruclion, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net position - Consist of net position with constraints placed on the use either
by (1) external groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributars, or laws or regulations of
other governments; or (2) law through consututional provisions or cnabling legislation,

c. Unrestricted net position — All other net position that do not meei the definition of
“restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

In the fund Nnancial statcmenis, governmental {unds report aggregate amount for five
classifications of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these resources.

Nonspendable fund balance. This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either {a) not in spendable form — prepaid items or inventories; or (b) legally or
contractually required 10 be maintained intacl.

The spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining four classifications:
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Restricted fund balance. This classification reflects (he constraints imposed on resources
either (a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governmenls; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Commined fund balance. These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant
10 constraints imposed by fonnal resolutions or ordinances of the 1own council — the government’s
highest level of decision making authority. Those committed amounts cannotl be used for any
other purpose unless the lown council removes the specified use by taking the same type of action
imposing the comniitment, This classification also includes contractual obligations (o the extent
that exisling resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those
contraciual requirements.
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Assigned fund balance. This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the
town’s “intent” 1o be used for specific purpeses but are ncither restricted nor commitied.  The
town council and town manager have the authority to assign amounts Lo be used for specific
purposes. Assigned fund balances include all remaining amounts {except negative balances) that
arc teported in governmental funds. other than the General Fund, that are nol classified as
nonspendable and are neither restricted nor commitied.

Unassigned fund balance. This fund balance is the residual classification for the General
Fund. It is also used to report negative lund balances in other governmental funds,

When an expendilure is incurred for purposes lor which both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available, the Town considers restricted funds 10 have been spent first,  When an
expenditure is incurred for which commitled, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available,
the Town considers the amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned
funds, and finally unassigned funds. as necded, unless the Town has provided otherwise in its
comimitment or assigninent actions.

Operating {(Nonoperating) Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprielary funds are thosc that result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. I also includes all
revenue and expenses not related 1o capital and related financing, noncapital financing. or
investing activitics.  All revenues and expenses nol meeting this definition arc reporied as
nonoperating revenues and cxpenses.

Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statemenis, expenses are classified by function for both
governimental and business-type activities.

In ihe fund financial slatements, expenditures are classificd as follows:

Governmental Funds — By Character
Proprietary Fund — By Operating and Nonoperating

[n the fund financial statements, governmental funds report cxpenditures of financial resources.
Proprietary funds report expenses relaung (o use of economic resources.

Interfund Transfers
Permanent reallocations of resources between lunds of the reporiing entity are classified
as interfund fransfers. For the purposes ol the statement of activities, all interfund transfers

between individual governmental funds have been eliminated.

Capitalization ol Inierest Expense

It is the policy of the Town of Basile to capitalize maierial amounis of interest resulling
from borrowing in the course of the construction of fixed assets. At Junc 30, 2022 the amount of
interest capitalized [or construction of assets in the Ulility Fund teialed zero.
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S. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an
allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance for doubiful accounts in the wtility fund is
estimated at § 0 since each account has a security deposit.

T. Inventories

Inventories in the proprietary fund consist of gas held for the Town’s use. Inventories are recorded at cost,
which approximates market, using (he frst-in, first-out method. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time
inventory is consumed rather than when purchased and is included in other assets, in the amount of $2,847.

) Deposits with Financial [nstitutions

The cash and cash equivalents of the Town of Basile, Louisiana are subject to the following risk:

Custodial Credir Risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
depository Nnancial institution, the Town will not be able to recover its deposits. Under state law, these deposits (or
resulting bank balances) must be sccured by federal deposit insurance, or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal
agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus ihe federal deposit insurance must at all times equal or
exceed the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal
agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable 10 both parties. Louisiana Revised Statute
39:1229 imposes a slatutory requirement on the cusiedial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10
days of being notified by the Town that the liscal agent bank has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand.
Further, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1224 states ihat securitics held by a third party shall be deemed 1o be held in
the Town’s name,

At June 30, 2022, the Town has cash and interest bearing deposits totaling $1,187.972 in the general ledger.

Demand deposits $1,167,972
Certificate of deposit 20,000
Tolal 51,187,972

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Deposit balances (bank balance)} at June 30,
2022, are secured as lollows.

Interest Non Interest

Bearing Bearing
Bank balances $  73.063 $ 1,147,130
Federal deposit S 250,000 $ 250,000
Pledged securities - 1,428,823
Total 250,000 1,678,823
Cxcess/{Shorage) § 176937 § 531,69
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Notes 10 Financial Statements (Continued)

Ad Valoremn Taxes

Ad Valorem 1axes atlach as an enforceable lien on propenty as of January 1 of cach year. Taxes are levied by the
Town in Seplember or October and are actually billed 10 the taxpayers in November or December. Billed taxes become
delinquent on January |, of the following year. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are budgeted in the year billed. The Town
bills and collects its own property taxes using the assessed values determined by the tax assessor of Evangeline Parish. Most
taxes are collected by February of the ensuring year.

For the vear ended June 30, 2022, taxes of 32.66 mills were levied on property with assessed valuations totaling
$6,161,820. 14.40 mills were dedicated to general corporate purposes and 18.26 mills were dedicated to revenue funds for the
purpose of acquisition, construction, improvement, maintenance and operation of public improvements and all activities
incidental thereto, subject only 10 the prior payment of the reasonable and necessary costs and cxpenses of collecting and
administering the (ax.

Tolal taxes levied were $215,780. Taxes reccivable al June 30, 2022, were $3,294 and allowances (or uncollectibles
were $0.

Restricted Asseis General And Proprietary Fund Type

Restricted Assets were applicable to the fellowing at June 30, 2022.

June 30, 2022
General Fund:

Police Station Renovation b 2,185
Law Enforcement 100
Special Tax Coilection Fund:
Revenue Bond Sinking Fund 100
Proprietary Fund:
Utility Deposits — Time Certificale of Deposit 20,000
LLCDBG Sewer Rehab 82
Revenue Bond Contingency Account - Cash 27,186
Water Reserve Fund 53,063
Water Depreciation & Contingency 53,182
Gas Contingency Fund 6,971
Total Restricted Asscls $ 162,869

On-Behalf Payments

The Town received on-behalf payments from the State of Louisiana, in the amount of $14,083, i the form of police
supplemenial pay.
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(6) Capital Assets

Capital asse1 activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Balance Balance
06/30/2021 Additions Deletions 06/30/2022
Governmenlal activities:
Capial asscts not being depreciated:
Land $ 47.730 $ - 5 - $ 47730
Other capital assets:
Buildings 1,482.113 - - 1,482,113
Equipment/Other 1,343,007 48,895 - 1,391,902
Totals 2,872,850 48,895 - 2921745
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings 866,704 37,052 - 903.756
Equipment/Other 716,122 51,327 - 767,449
Total accumulated depreciation 1,582.826 88,379 - 1,671,205
Covemnmental activities. capital assels, net $ 1,290,024 $ (39,484) S - S 1,250,540
Business-lype activilies:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 12.008 5 % $ 12.008
Other capital assets:
Water system 2,143,475 2,143,475
Gas system 825,494 - - 825,494
Fumiture and equipment 43.986 9,600 33,586
Sewersystem 3,272,456 18,549 3,291,005
Tolals 6,297,419 28,149 6,325,568
Less accumulated depreciation
Walersyslem 1,174,252 42,798 1,217,050
CGas syslem 563,083 13,942 577.025
Fumiture and equipment 43,987 640 44,627
Sewer syslem 1,885,706 66,869 1,952,575
Total accumulated depreciation 3,667,028 124,249 3,791,277
Business type activities, capital assels, net S 2,630,391 $ (96,100} $ $ 2,534,291
Depreciation expense was charged (o governmental activities as follows:
General govemmental $ 28,500
Police 22982
Fire 2,733
Streets 30.275
Recreation 3,889
Total depreciation expense $ 88,379
Depreciation expense was charged to business-typc activities as follows:
Gas b 13,942
Waler 43438
Sewer 66,369
Total depreciation cxpense § 124,249
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(7) Changes in Long-Term Debl

The following is a summary of debt transactions in the proprieiary fund of the Town of Basile,
Louisiana for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Payable at Payable a1
June 30, 2021 Addiutions Retirements June 30, 2022
Revenue bonds $ 523,085 5 - $ 28,047 £ 495038

Bonds payable at June 30, 2022 is comprised of the following individual issues:

Revenue bonds:

$670,000 Water Revenue Bonds dated 3/27/95; due

in monthly installiments ol $3,044.52, which includes

interest through March 27, 2035, interest at 4 1/2% per annum,

secured by waler revenue. § 354,981

$276,400 Water Revenue Bonds dated 3/27/95; due m monthly
instalhments of $1.254.86, which include interest through
March 27, 2035: interest al 4 2% per annum. secured by waler

revenue, 145,618
Total Bonds Payablc 500,599
Less Unamortized Debt [ssuance Cosl 5,501

495,038
Less Current Portion 29,799
Bonds Payable $ 465239

Inierest expense lotaled $23.109 and is included in business Lype activilies as a waler depariment expense.

The annual requirements 10 amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2022, including interest payments
ol $153,649, are as follows:

Year Ending Principal Interest

June 30, Total Payments Payments
2023 51.593 29,799 21,79
2024 51,593 3168 20,425
2025 51,593 32,600 18.993
2026 51,593 34.097 17,496
2027 51,593 35,664 15,929
2028-2032 257,965 204.452 53513
2033-2035 138318 132,819 5,499
S 654,248 $ 500,599 $ 153,649
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The following is a summary of debt (ransactions in the debt service fund of the Town of Basile,
Louisiana for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Payable at Payable a1
June 30, 2021 Additions Relirements June 30, 2022
Revenue bonds $ 336,000 3 i S 42,000 S 294000

Bonds payable at June 30, 2022 is comprised of the following individual issues:

Revenue bonds (sccured by proceeds of a propeny lax millage of up to 19.95 for sirect
improvement):

$480.060 Series 2017A Revenue Refunding Bond daled
04/13/2017; Retired annually in various installiment amounts;

bearing interest at 4.00% per annum, final maturity a1 03/15/2028, $ 294,000
Total Bonds Payable 294 000
Less Unamortized Debt Issurance Costs 30,250

263,750
Less Current Portion 44,000
Net Bonds Payable by 219,750

Interest expense tolaled $13,440 and is included in governmental activitics.

The annual requiremenis to amortize all debt outsianding as of June 30, 2022, including interest
payments of $37,760 are as follows:

Year Ending Principal Interest

June 30, Toltal Payiments Pay ments
2023 55,440 44,000 11,440
2024 53.760 46.000 9,760
2025 55.080 48.000 7.080
2026 $5.200 50.000 5.200
2027 33,240 52,000 3,240
2028 55,040 54,000 1,040
$ 331,760 $ 294,000 b 37,760

The Town is required that in order that the principal of and the nteresi on the Bonds will be paid
in accordance with their terms and for the other objects and purposes hercinafter provided. the Issuer
covenants that all of the avails or proceeds derived from the levy and coliection of the Tax shall continue to
be deposited daily as the same may be collected, in the Special Tax I'und. The Special Tax Fund shall
constituie a dedicated fund of the Issuer, [rom which appropriations and expenditures by the Issuer shall be
made solely for the purposes designated in the propositien authorizing the levy of the Tax. Ouf of the
funds on deposit in the Special Tax Fund, the Issuer shall first pay all reasonable and necessary costs and
expenses of collection and adminisiration of the Tax. After payment of such costs and expenses the
remaining moneys in the Special Tax Fund (1he “Net Tax Collections™) shall be administered and used in
the following order of priority and for the following express purposes:

The maintenance of the Sinking Fund, heretofore established, suificient in amount to pay promptly
and fully the principal of and the inerest on the Bonds and any Additional Parity Bonds, as they
severally become due and payable. by transferring from the Special Tax Fund to the Sinking FFund,
annually in advance on the 17 day of each March ol cach year, a sum, which together with any
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
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existing amounts in the Sinking Fund as of such dae, shall be equal to the total debt service
required 1o pay principal and interest as the same respectively become due in such year.

“Tax™ means the special tax of nineteen and nineiy-five one-hundredihs (19.95) mills on the dollar
assessed valuation of all property situated within the limits of the Issuer (or a peried of twenty (20) years,
beginning with the year 2008 and ending with the year 2028 for the purpose of acquisition, construclion,
improvemenlt, mamtenance and operation of public inprovements and all activities incidemal thereto,

Dedication of Proceeds and Flow of Funds

Al Dedication of Proceeds and Flow of Funds — 1% Sales and Use Tax Dated 7/21/80

Proceeds of this 1% sales and use tax levied by the Town of Basile
(2021 — 2022 collections-$128,016) arc dedicated for any lawful corporate
expenditure, including the funding into bonds.

B. Dedication of Proceeds and Flow of Funds — 1% Sales and Use Tax Dated
4/12/75

Proceeds of this 1% sales and use tax levied by the Town of Basile
{2021 - 2022 collections-$128.016) are dedicated to the following purposes:

Constructing, acquiring, extending, improving,
and/or maintaining drainage facilitics, streets. street lighting
faciliies, bridges, sidewalks, waterworks, sewers and
sewerage disposal works, recreational facilities, public parks,
public buildings and fire department stations and equipment,
including fire cngines and payment of salarics for fire
department personnel; and maintaining and opcraling the
municipal police department and garbage collection and
disposal facilities, including the purchase of cquipment
therefore; acquiring industrial plam sites and purchasing or
constructing within the municipality or adjoining areas or
arcas outside of the corporate limits of the municipality, but
within the Parish of Evangeline, industrial plant buildings and
other necessary property, appurlenances or equipment,
therefore, or lor any one or more of said purposes; and such
tax to be subject to funding into bonds,

Water Ulility Bonds:

Under the terms of the bond indenure on outstanding Water Utility Bonds, dated March 27, 1995,
all income and revenues (hereinafter referred to as revenue) of every nature, earned or derived from
operation of the Ultility System ar¢ pledged and dedicated 1o the retirement of said bonds, and arc 1o be set
aside into the following special funds:

OCut of the revenue there shall be set aside from time (o time into an Operation and Maintenance

Fund, amounts sufficient to provide for the payment of the reasonable and necessary expense of operating
and maintaining the system.
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Each month, there will be set aside into a fund called the Water Revenue Bond and Interest (Sinking)
IFund, an amount constituting 1/12 of the next maturing installment of principal and Interest on the oulstanding
bonds. Such transfers shall be fully sulTicient 10 assure the prompt payment of principal and interest installments
as (they become due, and may be used only for such pavimenis. The Town pays this directly 10 RECD monthly.

There shall be also set aside inio a Bond Reserve Fund, an amount of $215 per month until there shal)
have been accumulated in the Reserve Account an amouni equal (0 the maximum principal and interest
requirements in any one maturily year. Such amounts may be used only for the payments of maturing bonds and
interest coupons for which sufficient funds are not on deposit in the Bond and Interest Sinking Fund and as to
which there would otherwise be default.

Funds will also be set aside into a Depreciation and Contingency Fund at the rate of $458 per month,
Money in this fund may be used for the making of extensions, addilions, improvements, renewals, and
replacements to the system which are necessary to keep the system in operating condition and for which money is
not available as a maintenance and operaling expense. Money in this lund may also be used o pay principal or
inlcrest on the bonds falling due al any time there is not sufficient money fer payment in the other bond funds.

All of the revenues received in any fiscal year and not required 10 be paid in such fiscal year into any of
the above noted lunds shall be regarded as surplus and may be used lor any lawful corporate purpose.

The Town ol Basile was in comphance with all significant limitations and restrictions for this bond
indenture at June 30, 2022,

Ulility Customer Deposits

The accounts of the Town include a liability for utility customer deposits of $121,493. As of June 30,
2022, the Town has a certificate of deposit with a balance of $20,000 specifically set aside for customer ineter
deposits.

Employee Retirement

All employees of the Town of Basile belong to the Social Security Retirement System. The Town and
its employees contribute a percentage of cach employee’s salary to the System (7.65% contributed by ithe Town,
7.65% by the employee). The Town's contribution during the year ended June 30, 2022, amounted 10 $43,133.

Pension Plans
Plan Descriptions

{nn addition 10 the federal social security sysiem, substantially all employees (43) ol the Town of Basile
are members of the following statewide reuremient systems: Municipal Employees Retirement System of
Louisiana. These systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by
separate boards of trustees. Article 10, Section 29 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the authority 10
establish and amend benefit provisions to the stalc legislature. The sysiems issue annual, publicly-available
financial reports that include financial statements and required supplementary infarmation for the sysiems. The
report for MERS may be obtained at www.mersla.com and www.lampers.org, respeclively.

Plan Description- MERS

MERS was originally eslablished by Act 356 of the 1934 regular session of the Legislature of the State
ol Louisiana and is composed ol twao distinct plans, Plan A and Plan 13, with separate assets and benefit
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provisions. All employces of the Town of Basile are members of Plan B. All permanent employees working at
least 35 hours per weck who are nol covered by another pension plan and are paid wholly or in part from
municipal funds and all clected municipal officials are eligible to participate in MERS.

The System is administered by a Board of Trustees compaosed of eleven members, three of whom shall
be active and contributing members of the System with at least len years creditable service and who are elected to
office in accordance with the Louisiana Election Code, three of whom shall be active and contributing members
of the System with al least ten years credilable since and who are not elected officials; one of whom shall be
president of the Louisiana Municipal Association who shall serve as an ex-officio member during his tenure; one
of whom shall be the Chairman of the Senate Retirement Committee; and one of whom shall be the Chairman of
the House Retirement Committee of the Legislature of Louisiana; the commissioner of administration, who shall
be a nonvoting member, and the State Treasurer, who shall be a nonvoting member.

The System is the administrator ol a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The
Svystem was established and provided for by R.S. 11:1731 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes (L.RS).

Benefits Provided:

Retirement Benelits- MERS

Any member of Plan B who commenced participation in the System prior 1o January |, 2013 can
retire providing he meeis one of the following criteria:

1. Any age with thirty (30) years ol creditable service.
2. Age 60 with a minimum of ten (10) or more yvears of creditable scrvice.

Generally, the menthly amount of the retircment allowance for any member of Plan B shall
consist of an amount equal to two percent of the member’s monthly average final compensation multiplied
by his years ol creditable service. I-inal average compensation is the average monthly eamings during the
highest sixty consecutive months, or joincd months if service was interrupted. However, under certain
conditions as outlined in the statules, the benelits are limited 1o specified amounts.

Any member of Plan B Tier 2 shall be eligible for retirement if he meets one of the following
requirements:

Seven (7) vears or more of service, al age sixty-scven or thereafier.
Ten (10) years or more of service, al age sixty-two, or thereafter,
Thirty (30) ycars or more of scrvice., at age filly-five or thereafier.
Twenty-live {25) years of service credit a1 any age, exclusive of military service and unused
annual sick leave.

_-E-WI\JI—

The monthly amount of the retivement allowance for any member of Plan B Tier 2 shall consist of
an amount equal to 1wo percent of the member's final compensation multiplied by his years of creditable
service. [inal average compensation is the average monthly earnings during the highest sixty consecutive
months, or joined months if service was interrupted. However, under certain conditions as outlined in the
statutes, the benefits are limited o specified amounts.
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Deferred Retiremeni Options

In licu of terminating employment and accepling a service retirement allowance, any member of
MERS who s eligible 1o retire may elect 1o participate in the delerved retirement option plan (DROP) for
up to three years and defer the receipt of benefits,. A MERS member may participate in DROP only once,
During participation in the plan, employer contributions are payable but employec contributions cease. The
monthly retirement benefits that would be payable, had the person elected 1o cease employment, are
credited to the MERS member's individual DROP account. Interest is earned when the member has
completed DROP participation. Upon termination of employment prior (o or al the end of the participation
period, the member may receive & lump sum [rom the account or a true annuily based on the account
balance. If employment is not tenminated at the end of the three year DROP participation period, paymenls
into the DROP account ceasc and the person resumes aclive contributing membership m MERS.

Disabilitv Benefits

A member of MERS Plan B is eligible to retive and receive a disability benefit if he or she has at
least 10 ycars of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement and has been officially certified as
disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. The monthly maximum reticement benefit under PPlan B of
MERS is the lesser of an amount equal 10 iwo percent of member's final compensation muliplied by years
of service (nol less than 30% of member's final compensaiion) or an amount equal to what the member’s
normal retirement benefit would be based on final compensation at time of disability, but assuming
continuous service until member's earliest normal retirement age.

Survivor's Benefil

Upon death of any member of Plan B wilh five (5) or more years of credilable service, not eligible
for normal retirement, the plan provides lor benchis for the surviving spouse as outlined in the slatules.

I.  Surviving spouse who is married no less than twelve (12) months immediately preceding
death of member, shall be paid a monthly benefit equal 10 1hirty percent of the member’s final
compensation, payable when the surviving spouse altains the age of sixty years or becomes
disabled and payable for as long as the surviving spouse lives, or

2 A monthly benelif equal to the actuarial equivalent of the benefit described above, but not less
than fifieen percent of the member's final compensation, payable upon the death of the
member and payable for as long as the surviving spouse lives, Selecting this benefit precludes
ihe survivor from cligibility for the thirty percent benefit payable when the surviving spouse
attams the age of sixty years,

Any member of Plan B who is eligible for normal retirement al Lime of death and who leaves a
surviving spouse will be deemed 10 have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of the surviving
spouse on the date of death. Such benefits will begin only upon proper application and are paid in lieu of
any other survivor benefits.
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Cost of Living Increases

MERS is authorized under state law (o grant an annual cost of living adjustment to members who
have been retired for al least one yvear. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree’s original benefit
and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available. The cost of living increase must be paid from
investment income in excess of normal requirements. State law allows (he System to grant additional cost
of hving increases 1o all retirees and bencficiarics who are age sixty-five and above equal 10 2% of the
benetit being received on October], 1977, or the original benefit, if retirement commenced after that date.

Deferred Benefits

Both Plans provide lor deferred benefits for members who tenninate before being eligible for
retirement. Once the member reaches the appropriale age for retirement, benefits become payable,
Benefits are based on statutes in effect at time ol withdrawal.

Contributions:

The MERS employer contribution rales are established annually under La R.S 11:101-11:104 by
the Pubhc Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC), taking into consideration the
reconmendation of the systemn's actuary. For the year ending June 30, 2021 the employer contribution rate
for MERS Plan 8B was 15.5%. Employer contributions 10 MERS was $43.133, for the year ended June 30,
2022. Employees participaling in MERS are required 1o contribute 5.00%.

Contributions received by a pension plan from non-employer contributing entities that are not in a
special funding situation are recorded as revenue by the respective pension plan. MERS receives ad
valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. The Town of Basile recognizes revenue in an amount equal
10 ils proportionate share of the total contributions 1o the pension plan from these non-employer
contributing entities. During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town of Basile recognized revenue as a
result of support reccived from non-employer contributing entities of $8.140 for its participation in MERS,

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expensey and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred [nflows of
Resources Related to Pensions:

At June 30, 2021, the Town of Basile reporied a lisbility for MERS of $188,667, for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liabilities were measured as of June 30,
2021 and the total pension liabilities used to calculale the net pension liability were determined by actuarial
valuations as of that date. The Town of Basile's proportion of the net pension liability for the retirement
system was based on a projection of the Town of Basile's long-tenn share of contributions to the pension
plan relative to the projecied contributions of all participating cmployers, actvarially determined. At June
30, 2021, the Town of Basile's propertion for MERS was 0.325677%. This rellects a increase for MERS of
0.042699% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020,

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town of Basile recognized pension expense, for which there
were no lorfeitures, as follows:

Pension Expense Net Pension Liability
MERS $25.682 $188.667
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At June 30, 2022, the Town of Basile reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related Lo pensions from the following sources:

MERS: Deferred Cutflows Deferred [nflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience $ - $ (7,786)
Changes in assumplicns 7,638 -

Net difference belween projected

and actual earnings on pension

plan investments - (50,987)
Changes in proportion and differences

between employer centributions and

proportionate share of contributions 22631 (6,680)
Employer contributions subsequent

1o measurement date 43,133 -

Total 3 73,402 $ (65,453)

During the year ended June 30, 2022, employer contributions totaling $43,133 were made
subsequent to the measurement dalc for MERS. These contributions are reported as deferred outflows of
resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021,
Other amounts reported as deferred outNows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30: MERS
2022 $ (1,180
2023 {465)
2024 (12,459
2025 (16,896)
Total $ (31,001)

Actuarial Assumptions

The nel pension liability was measured as the portion of the present value of projected beneli
payiments to be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is
attributed to those employees’ past periods ol service, less the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary nel
position. The components of the net pension liability of MERS employers as of June 30, 2021 are as
follows;

2021 2020
MERS Plan 3 MERS Plan B
Tolal Pension Liability $ 904,285 $ 760,069
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 715,618 503,627
Total Net Pension Liability $ 188,667 5 256,442
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
% of the Total Pension Liability 79.14% 66.26%

The Town of Basile's allocation is 0.325677% of the Tolal Net Pension Liability for MERS.
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The tetal pension liabilivies for MERS in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuations wcre
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

MERS
Acluarial cost method Entry Age Nanmal
Expected remaining service lives 3 vears for Plan B
Investment rate of retum 6.83%. net of investment expensc
Inflation rale 2.500%
Salary increascs, inlcuding
inflation and merit increases:
-1 lo 4 years of service 74% - Plan B
-More than 4 years of service 4.9% - Plan B
Annuilant and PubG-20190(B} Healthy Retiree Table
beneficiary mortality sel equal to 120% for males and females,

cach adjusted using their respective
malc and lemale MP20I18 scales.

Employee inortality PubG-2010(B) Employee Table set equal
to 120% for males and females, each
adjusted using their respective male and
femule MP2018 scales.

Disabled lives mortality PubNS-2010(8) Disabled Retirce Table set
equal to 120% for males and females with
the full generational MP20!8 scales,

The MERS actuarial assumptions used were based on the resulis of an experience study for the
period July |, 2009 through June 30, 2014,

The forecasted long-term expected rate of relurn on pension plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which best- estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined o produce the long-tenn expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation and an adjustment lor the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting expected long-term
rate of return for MERS is 6.85% for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Best estimales of arithmelic real rates of return for cach major assel class included in the target
asset allecation for MERS as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the lollowing 1able:

Long-Term Expecied

Assel Class Target Allocations Real Ratc of Return
Equity 3% 231%
Fixed Income 38% 1.65%
Altermnatives Do 0.39%
Other 0% 0.00%
Total 100% 2.60%
Expected Nominal Retum 6.95%
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Discount Ratcs

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for MERS was 7.95%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that coniributions from plan members will be
made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made a1
the actuarially determined rates approved by PERSAC taking into consideration the recomnendation of the
actuary. Based on those assumptions, the net position of MERS was projecled to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the leng-tenn expected rate of retum
on pension plan investments was applied 1o all periods of projected benefit payments 10 determine the total
pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rates

The following table presents the Town of Basile's proportionate share of the net pension hability
using the discount rate of 6.95% for MERS, as well as what the Town's proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower
(5.95% for MERS) or one percentage-point higher (7.95% for MERS) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decreasce Discount 1% Increase
MERS § 289455 $ 188,667 $ 103,420

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2022, payable 10 MERS was $0 for Junc 2022 cmployee and employer legally-required
contributions.

Natural Gas Contract

The Town of Basile, under contract is required 10 purchase its natural gas [rom Louisiana Mulual
Gas Corporation unless or until terminated cither by seller or buyer upen twelve months prior written
notice. The Town purchased natural gas for the year ended June 30, 2022 in the amount of $59,686 of
which $6,663 was owed for purchases for the month of June 30, 2022,

Segment Information for the Enterprise Fund

The Town of Basile maintains one Enterprise fund with three deparuments which provide gas,
water, and sewer services, Segment information lor the year ended June 30, 2022, was as fo)lows:

Total
Gas Walter Sewer Enterprise
Departmenl Department Department Fund
Operating revenues § 251,688 § 429,173 S 187,690 S 868,551
Operaling expenses 168,606 306,618 209358 684,582
Operating income $ 83,082 $ 122,555 ) (21.668) $ 183,969
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Compensation of Town Officials

A detail of compensation paid 1o the mayor and Board of Alderman for the year ended June 30,
2022 is as follows:

Mark Deneute, Mayor 22,392
Aldermen:
Catina Heben 3,245
Carmen Cortez 3.245
Kenny Burgess 3.245
Knsty Miller 3,245
Latoya Howze 3,245
S 38.617

IFederally Assisted Funds

The town participated in federally assisted programs. T'hese programs are audiied in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards.

Concentration of Risks

Concentration of risks wilh respect 10 the town is subject to the conditions of the limited
geographical area of the town.

Accounting Pronouncements

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issucd the lollowing Statements which
will become effective in futures years as shown below:

Statement No. 87, “Leases™ increases the uselulness of governmenis” financial statements by
requiring recognition of ceriain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outllows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It eslablishes a single model {or lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to usc an underlying assel. Under this Statement, a lessee is
required (o recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments® lcasing activities. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for fiscal year 2022. This statement had no effect on the Town’s financial statements far the
current fiscal year.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management ic make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of
asseis and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial stalements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
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Pending Litigation

Michael Thomas. el al vs. Town of Basile, el al. The potential lnancial exposure cannoi be
determined at this time.

Nolan Carmouche vs. Shell Oil Company. et al. The polential financial exposure cannot be
determined at this time.

Interfund Aclivities

Transfers to/[rom other funds at June 30, 2022, consist of the following:

From the Utility Fund to the General Fund for operations $ 421,589
FFrom the Sales Tax Fund to the General Fund 161,333
FFrom the Sales Tax Fund to the Utility Fund for operations 194,700
I'rom the Sales Tax Fund to the Special Sales Tax Fund 100
From the Special Sales Tax Fund to the Gengeral Fund 9,351
IFrom the Speciat Sales Tax Fund to the Utility Fund 18,549

In general, iransfers are used (o (1) move revenues from the fund that collects the money to the fund that
expends the money, (2) move receipts resiricled or earmarked for debt services from the funds collecting
the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and {(3) use unrestricted
revenues collected in a lund 1o provide operating advances to other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations.

Evaluation ol Subsequent Evenls

The Town has evalualed subsequent cvents through October 27, 2022, the date which the financial
statemenis were available to be issued.
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Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permils
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeits
Miscellancous
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current
General government
Public safery:
Police
[Fire
Streets and drainage
Parks
Capital outlay
Tolal expenditures

Excess (deliciency) of
revenues over
expendilures

Other Nnancing sources (uses):
Insurance proceeds
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing
sources {uses)

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues and other
sources over expenditures
and other uses

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

See accompanying notes Lo Required Supplementary Inforination.

TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA

General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance —
Buduel [Faverable
Qriginal Final Actual {Unfavorabie}
$ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ 176,637 5 26,637
62.000 62,000 67.978 5,978
3.500 17,583 18,510 927
50,000 50,000 103.826 53.826
18,000 18,000 434 947 416,947
283,500 297,583 801,898 304,315
365,950 376,703 321,563 55,140
406,000 444,083 454,675 (10,592)
6,300 6,300 4,037 2,263
255,250 244 497 216,863 27,634
7,500 7,500 34,615 (27,115
54,500 54,500 48,895 5,605
1,095,500 1,133.583 1,080,648 52,935
(812,000) (836.000) (278,750} 557,250
3.600

710.000 734,000 592,272 (141,728)
710,000 734,000 595,272 {141,728)
(102.000) (102,000) 316,522 415,522
1.267 260,144 260,144 =
$(100,733) § 158,144 § 576.666 £ 415522
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Revenues:
Taxes
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Office supplhes
Legal and professional
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over
expenditurcs

Other hinancing sources {uses ).
Operating transfers in
Cperating transfers out

Total other inancing
sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues and oither
sources over expenditures
and other uses

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

See accompanying notes 10 Required Supplementary Infornmation.

TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Special Revenue Fund - Sales Tax Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance —

Buduet Favorable
Original Iinal Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 205,000 $ 205,000 $ 256,031 $ 51,031
205,000 205,000 256,031 51,031
- 213 (213)
- - 2,600 (2,600)
- 2813 (2,813)

205,000 205,000 253218 48,218
(205,000) (205,000) {356,133) {151,133)
(205,000} (205,000) (356,133) (151,133)
- (102,915) (102,915}

270,805 289,490 289,490

$ 270,805 $ 289,490 $ 186,575 $ (102,915
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Special Revenue Fund - Special Tax Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance —
Budgel Favorable
Onginal linal Actual {Unlaverable)
Revenues:
Taxcs $ 115.000 $ 115,000 $ 118,480 3 3,480
Total revenues 115,000 115,000 118,430 3,480
Expenditures:
Miscellancous
Capital outlay -
Total expenditures -
Excess (defliciency) ol
revenues over
expenditures 115,000 115,000 118,480 3,480
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in - . - -
Operating transfers out {55,000) {55,000) (83.270) (28,270)
Total other financing
sources {uscs) (55,000) {55,000) (83.270) (28.270)
Excess {dcficiency) of
revenues and other
sources over expendilures
and other uses 60,000 060,000 35,210 (24,790)
IFund balances, beginning 102,785 77952 77,952 -
Fund balances, ending $ 162,785 $ 137,952 $ 113,162 b {24,790)

See accompanying notes ic Required Supplementary Information.
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Notes to Required Supplememary Informanion

Note 1. Legal Compliance - Budgets

A. The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in these financial statements:

l. The Town Clerk prepares a proposed budget and submits same to
Mayor and Board of Aldermen ne later than fifieen days prior to the beginning
of each fiscal year.

2. A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public notified
that the proposed budget is available for public inspection. At the sane time, a
public hearing is called.

3 A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after
publication of the call for the hearing.

4. Afier the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action
necessary 1o finalize and implement the budget, the budget is adopted through
passage of a resolution prior 1o the commencement of the fiscal year for which
the budget is being adopted.

5 Budgetary amendments involving the (ransfer of funds from one
department, program or function to another or involving increases in
expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amounts estimated require the
approval of the Board of Aldermen,

6. All budgetary apprapriations lapse at the end ol cach fiscal year.

T Budgels for all funds are adopled on a basis consistent with generally
accepied accounting principles of the United States of America. Budgeted
amounts are as originally adopied or as amended from time 10 time by the Board
of Aldermen. The budgel was amended prior o the fiscal year and June 30,
2022.

Note 2. Stewardship, Compliance and Accouniability

Excess_of Expenditures over Appropriations. The following individual lunds
had actual expenditures in excess of appropriations lor the year ended Jung 30,

2022:
Variance —
Budget Favorable
Original 1inal Actual {(Unlavorable)
Sales Tax lF'und $ - $ - $ 2813 : (2.813)

Nete 3. Pensions

Changes of Benefit Tenns: For MERS, there were no changes of benefit terms
for the year ended june 30, 2021.

Changes of Assumptions: Municipal Employees® Retirement System -
For the actuarial valuation for the year ended June 30, 2021, the discount rate
was reduced from 6.95% (o 6.85%.
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Schedule of Employer’s Proportionate Share of Neti Pension Liability
Year Ended Jung 30, 2022

TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA

Employer's
Proportionate
Share of the

Employer Employer Net Pension
Proportionate Proportionale Liability Plan Fiduciary
of the Share olhe Employer's (Asset)as a Net Position
Fiscal Net Pension Nel Pension Covered Percentage of as a Percenlage
Year Liability Liability Employee It's Covered of the Total
{MERS) {Assel) {Assel} Pavroll Employec Payroll Pension Liabiliy
2022 0.325677 $ 188,667 $ 278,277 0.67% 79.14%
2021 0.282978 256,442 250,290 102.45% 66.26%
2020 0.296528 259,408 219,298 118.29% 66.14%
2019 0.349792 295,865 226,687 130.52% 65.60%
2018 0.350800 264,588 320,557 82.54% 63.49%
2017 0.361720 299,833 226978 -13.21% 63.34%
2016 0.340048 231,113 265,752 86.96% 68.71%
2015 0.354325 166,354 244 665 67.90% 76.94%
2014 0.040527 222,677 259,779 85.70% 71.92%
2013 . - 272,716 - -

Pension Plan

Changes of Assumptions — Changes of assumptions about future economic or demographic factors

or of other inputs were recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a
closed period equal 1o (he average of the expecied remaining service lives of all employees that are provided
with pensions through the pension plan. Thesc assumptions include the rate of investment return. mortality of
plan members, rate of salary increase, rales of retirement, rates of termination, rates of disability, and various
other factors that have an impact on the cost of the plan.



TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Employer’s Pension Contributions
Year Cnded June 30, 2022

Contributions Contributions
in Relation Employer's as a Percent
Fiscal Contractually to Contraclual Contribution Covered of Covered
Year Required Required Deficiency LEmployee Employce
{MERS) Contribution Contribution {Excess) Payroll Payroll
2022 S 43,133 $ 43,133 $ . $ 278277 15.50%
2021 38,795 38,795 - 250,290 15.50%
2020 30,702 30,702 - 219,298 14.00%
2019 31,736 31,736 = 226,687 14.00%
2018 35,261 35,261 - 320,557 11.00%
2017 24 968 24,968 - 226,978 11.00%
2016 25,236 25,236 - 265,752 9.50%
2015 23,243 23,243 - 244,665 0.50%
2014 22,579 22,579 - 259,779 8.69%
2013 21,817 20,817 - 272,716 8.00%

Pension Plan

Changes of Assumptions — Changes ol assumptions about lulure cconomic or demographic factors
or of other inputs were recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a
closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided
with pensions through the pension plan, These assumptions include the rate of invesiment return, mortality of
plan members, rate of salary increase, rates of retirement, rates of termination, rates of disability, and various
other faciors that have an impact on the cost of the plan,
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Towal revenues

TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Ceneral Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule of Revenues
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance -
Budget Favorable
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)
Taxes:
Ad valorem 3 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 105,339 s 5.339
Franchise 50.000 50,000 71,298 21,298
Total taxes 150,000 150,000 176,637 26,637
Licenses and peanils - occupational 62,000 62,000 67,978 5978
Intergovernmental:
State of Louisiana -
Beer tax 1,500 1.500 1,402 (98)
Video poker 2.000 2 3.025 1,025
Supplemental pay - 14,083 14,083 -
Total intergovernmental 3,500 17,583 18,510 927
IFines and forfeits 50,000 50,000 103,826 53,826
Miscellancous:
Grant - - 329723 320723
Other 18.000 18,000 105,224 87,224
Total miscellaneous 18,000 18,000 434,947 416,947

$ 283,500 $ 297,583 $ 80).898 § 504,315
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General government
Advertising and legal notices
Dues and subscriptions
Education and travel
Insurance
Miscellancous
Office expenses
Payroll taxes and retirement
Professional fecs
Salarics
Utilities and telephane

Total general government

Public safewy:
PPolice department -
Liducation and ravel
Gas. oil and mainicnance
Miscellancous
Payrodl taxes and retirement
Repairs and maintenance supplies
Salarics
Uniforms
Utilitics and telephone
Total pohce department

I'ire department —
General operations
Gas. o1l and imaintenance
Toual fire depariment

Total public <alcty

Streets and drainage:
Miscellaneous
Gax. oil and maintenance
Salarics
Supplics
Repairs and maintenance
Payroll taxes and retirgment
Street lighting

Total streeis and drainage

Park Expense
Capital outlay;

Lgquipmens & buildings
Total expenditures

TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
CGienerpl Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budegetary Comparison Schedule of Lxpenditures

Variance —
Budect Favorable
Originul I"inal Actual {Unfavorablc)
b3 4.000 $ 4,000 $ 4.840 5 (Bd0)y
1.000 1.000 540 460
5.000 5.000 3,700 1.300
100,040 100,600 02.635 37.365
24,500 24,500 11.337 13.163
20,000 20,000 18.826 1.174
27200 307760 28,993 1.783
36,040 36,000 21.676 14,324
134,300 141,677 156,486 (14,809
13,750 13,750 12,330 1,220
363,950 376,703 321.563 53.140
3.000 3.000 7.806 {4,806}
38000 62,000 45,227 16.773
i - 579 (579
37.500 37,500 35311 2,189
15.000 15,000 19,585 {4.583)
291 000 305083 327.559 (22,476)
3.000 3.000 1.218 1,782
18,500 18,500 17,390 1,110
406,000 444,083 454 673 {10.592)
3.300 3300 3.205 2.095
1.000 1,000 R32 168
6.300 6.300 4,037 2,263
412,300 450,383 458,712 {8,329)
750 750 7949 {49)
27.000 27.000 27.136 (136)
128.000 117,247 93.649 13,598
1,500 1.500 2155 (655)
30.000 30,000 38.286 (8.280)
34.000 34,000 15.875 18,125
34,000 34,000 38,963 (4,963)
253,250 244,497 216,863 27,634
7.500 7.300 34.615 (27.1135)
54,500 34,500 48.895 5.605
31,095,500 $ 1,133,583 $ 1080648 by 52935
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Govermnental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2022

Capitai Project Debt Service
Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents b 897 % - S 897
Total assels $ 897 S - S 397
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 - $ - $
Due 10 other funds . .
Total habilities = = =
[Fund balances:
Restricted, debt service - ~ 2
Assigned 897 - 897
Unassigned - . .
Total fund balances 897 s 297
Total abilities and und balances $ 897 S - S 897
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Noenmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances
Year Ended Junc 30, 2022

Capital Project Debt Service
Fund Fund Totals
Revenues:
Taxes $ - $ - S -
Total revenues - - -
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Expenditures:
Current-
General Govermnment - - -
Debt service-
Principal retirement - 42,000 42,000
Interest paid - 13,440 13.440
Other 30 30
Total expenditures - 55,470 55,470
Excess {(deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures - (55,470) (55,470)
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in . 55470 55,470
Operating trans fers out - - -
Total other linancing soucces (uses) - 35,470 55,470
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over expenditures and
other uses - - -
Fund balances, beginning 897 - §97
Fund balances, ending $ 897 5 . 'y 807




NONMAIJOR CAPITAL PRGIECT FUNDS

Capital project lunds are used 10 account for specific revenues that are assigned 10 expenditures for particular
PUrposc.

Capital Project Fund

To account for receipts and expenditures associaled with the construction of capital projects.
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Govemmental Funds - Captlal Projects Fund
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2022

ASSETS
Cash $ 897
Investments -
Total assets $ 897

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabifitics:
Accrued liabilities $ -
Due 1o other funds
Total habilities -

Fund balances;

Assigned 897
Unassigned e W

Total fund balances 897

Toial liabilties and fund balances $ 897
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Capital Projects Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues:
Taxes
Total revenues

Expendilures;
Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expendilures

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating trans [ers out
Tolal other financing sources (uses)
Excess {deficiency) ol revenues and
othersources over expendilures and
other uses

Fund balances, bepinning

IFund balances. ending

55

897

897
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NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-tenn
debt principal, imerest and related costs.

Debt Service Fund

To account for payment of principal. interest and related cosis of deblt.



TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Debt Service
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2022

ASSETS
Cash 5
Investments
Tolal assets 3

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilnies:
Accrued liabilities S
Due 10 other funds
Total liabilities
Fund balances:
Restricted, debl service
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilitics and fund balances 5
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TOWN QF BASILE. LOUISIANA
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Debt Service Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended iune 30, 2022

Revenues:
Miscellaneous iierest $ s
Total revenues s

Expenditures:
Debt service-
Principle retirement 42,000
Interest charges 13,440
Other 30
Total expenditures 55,470
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {55.470)

expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Operating (ransfers in 55,470
Operating transfers oul -
Total other financing sources (uses) 35.470

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
othersources over expenditures and
other uses -

Fund balances, beginning -

Fund balances, ending $ .



TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Enterprise Fund
Utility Fund
Dcpartimental Analysis of Operating Revenues and Expenscs
Year Ended June 30. 2022

Ceneral and
Totals Gas Water Sewer Administrative
Operaling revenues:
Customer service charges S 827,621 0§ 239000 $ 411,064 0§ 177457 % -
Conneclion charges 9,103 2,822 4,005 2,276 -
Delinguent charges 17,213 5,336 7.574 4,303 .
Miscellaneous 14,614 4,530 6430 3,654 -
Total operating revenues 868.55! 251,688 429,173 187,690 -
Operating expenses:
Salaries 63,842 32.825 31.017 : .
Payroll taxes and retirement 9,576 4,778 4,798 - -
Insurance 28,527 - - - 28,527
Repairs, maintenance and supplies 148.522 32,483 17,963 08,076 -
Gas and water purchased 239.141 59.686 179,455 - -
Depreciation 124,249 13,942 43,438 66,869 -
Oflice expense 3,723 - - - 3.723
Telephene and utilities 37,389 5,027 3,355 29,207 -
Auto expenses and travel 700 - - - 700
Dues 1,376 - - - 1,370
Professional [ees 7.340 - - - 7.340
Bad debts 1.678 - - - 1,678
Miscellaneous 18,319 1,130 - 97 17,092
Allocation of' general and administrative
expenses o 18,735 26.592 15,109 (60,436)
Total operating expenses 684,582 168,606 306,618 209,358 -
Net operating income 183,960 $§ 83082 § 122535 § (21.668) $ -

Nonoperating revenues (expenses);

Interest income 36
Interest expense (23,109)
Grant revenue 13.971
Nonemployer pension contribution 1.465
Miscellaneous {436)
Total nonoperating expenscs (8,053)

Income (loss) before operating
iransfers 175916

Operating transfers in (oul):

Operating transfers in 346,254
Operating transfers out (554.393)
Total operating trans fers (208,339)

Net income (loss) (32,423)

Net position, beginning 2,296,357
Net position, ending S 2263934
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COMPLIANCE, INTERNAL CONTROL
AND
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VIGE, TUJAGUE &2 NOEL

A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
153 N. 252 STREET

P. 0. BOX 1006
EUNICE, LOUISIANA 70535
SHIRLEY VIGE, JR., CPA. TELEPHONE-
FRANK G. TUJAGUE, C.PA. 337-457.9324
DOMINIQUE M. NOEL. C.P4. FAX:

337-457-8743

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMUENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCLE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

The Honorable Mark Denctic
and Members of the Board of Alderman
Town of Basile, Louisiana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepied in the United States of
America and the standards applicable (o linancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller Gencral of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activitics, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Town of Basile, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes 1o the
financial statements. which collcetively comprise Town of Basile, Louisiana’s basic financial statements
and have i1ssued our report thercon dated October 27, 2022

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

[n planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Town of Basile,
Louisiana’s internal control over financial reporting {infernal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purposc of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpese of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Basile,
Loussiana’s internal conirol. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of
Basile, Louisiana’s internal control.

A deficiency in mlernal control exists when the design or operation of a conirol does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, 1o prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatcments on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the enuty’s financial statements will not be prevented or deiccted and corrected on a timely basis. A
significent deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness. vel important cnough 10 merit atlention by those charged with
governance,

Qur consideration of intermal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identily all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore. material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, maierial weaknesscs
may exist that have not been identilied. We did identily certain deficiencies in internal control, described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items #2022-001 through #2022-002 that we
consider to be significant deliciencics.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town of Basile, Louisiana’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests ol its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective ol our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required (o
be reported under Governmment Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and responses as ilems #2022-00] through #2022-002.

Town of Basile, Louisiana’s Response to Findings

Town of Basile, Louisiana’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and gquestioned costs. Town of Basile, Louisiana’s response was nol
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we
CXpress no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this rcport is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

e NS
}l/gi uague\‘;}c‘? CPA’s

Eunice, LLouisiana
October 27, 2022
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended Jung 30, 2022

We have audited the financial siateinents of Town of Bastle as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and have
issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2022, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of Ainerica and the siandards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issucd by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our audil of the financial
statements as of June 30, 2022, resulted in an unmaodified opinion.

Scction I. Summary of Auditor's Reports

a. Report on Internal Control and Compliance Material 10 the Financisl Statements

Internal Control

Material Weaknesses __ Yes _x No  Significant Defliciencies _x_Yes No
Compliance
Noncompliance Material 1o Financial Statement ____ Yes _x No

b, Federal Awards

None

Section Il Financial Statement Findings

#2022-001 — Scgregation of Dutics

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Eflect:

Recommendation:

Response:

In reviewing the internal conirol struciure, we noted inadequate segregation of duties
existed in all areas of the Nnancial cycle.

Segregation of conflicting duties within accounting functions is a basic internal control.
Inadequate segregation of duties exists due w0 the limited number ol personnel
performing the adininistrative functions. Due 10 lack of resources, the Town is unable 10
implement a segregated system ol internal control,

Inadequaie segregation of dutics within the accounting functions.

Based upon the size of the operation and the cosi-benefit of additional personnel, it may
not be feasible to achieve complete segregation of duties.

The Town does not belicve that is would be cost beneficial or possible with the limited
resources available to create a segregated accounting environment.

#2022-002 — Budeet Variance

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause;

There was a violation of the Louisiana Government Budget Act. Expenditures of the
Sales Tax Fund exceeded budgeted appropriations by an amount greater than 5%.

When 10lal actual expenditures exceed tolal budgeted expenditures by 5% or imore and/or
when lotal revenues fail 10 meet total budgeted revenues by 5% or more or there has been
a change in operation upon which the original adopled budget was developed, the Town
shall adopt a budget amendment in an open meeting 10 reflect such a change

The Town did not properly amend the budget for expenditures paid oul of the Sales Tax
Fund,
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TOWN OF BASILE. LOUISIANA
Schedule of Findings and Responses (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Efect: Failure to properly amend the budget results in variances beyond the 5% of budgeted
expenditures incurred.

Recommendation:  We recommend that the Town make the necessary amendments to the budget prior o
year end for changes in revenucs and expenditures incurred.

Response: The Town accepls and agrees with the recommendation as presented.

Section I11. Summary of Other Audit Results

I The auditor’s report eapresses an unmodified opinion of the financial statement of Town of Basile,
Louisiana.

2. There was no single audit required under OMB Circular A-133.
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Status of Prior Years
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended June 30, 2022

£2021-001 Segreeation of Dulies

Condition:

Recommendation:

Response:

Status:

Dug to the small number of employees, the town did not have an adegquate segregation of
functions within the accounting system.

Based upon the size of the operation and the cost-benefil ol additional personnel, it may
not be feasible to achieve complete segregation of duties,

No response is considered necessary.

This finding was repeated for June 30, 2022 as #2022-001.

#2021-002 Revenue Refunding Bonds Debt Service

Condition:

Recommendatian:
Response:

Status:

The l'own did not deposit the required amounts of the property tax necessary to fund the
revenue refunding bonds sinking fund requirements.

We recommend that the Town comply with the debt service fund requirements.
The Town will camply with the debt service fund requirements in the future.

This finding was cleared.

#2021-003 Budgel Variation

Condition:

Recommendation:

Response:

Status:

There was a violation of the Louisiana Government Budget Acl. Expenditures of the
Sales Tax I'und exceeded budgeted appropriations by an amount greater than 5%.

We recommend that the Tewn make the necessary amendinems (o the budget prior 10
year end for changes in revenues and expenditures incurred.

The Town accepts and agrees with the recommendation as presented.

This finding was repeated for June 30, 2022 as #2022-002.

#2021-004 — Late Audit Submission

Condition:

Recommendation:

Response:

Status:

The audit report was not complete or submitied to the Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s
office within six months of the entitics fiscal year end.

We recommend that the Town provide the necessary infonnaticn to the reviewer in a
timely manner to ensure that the audit is completed and submitted by the required
dead!ine.

The Town accepts and agrees with the recommendanon as presented.

This finding was clearcd.
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Name

Mark Denetle

Carmen Corlcz

Latoya Howze

Kristy Miller

Catina Heben

Kenny Burgess

TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISTANA
Schedule of Mayor and Alderman
Year Ended June 30, 2022

QOffice and Term

Mayor
2022

Alderman
2022

Aldenvoman
2022

Alderwoman
2022

Alderwoman

2022

Alderman
2022

66

Address and Telephonc

P.O. Box 538
Basile, LA 70515
337-780-6276

1430 N Mildred Ave,
Basile, LA 70513
337-789-0014

P.O. Box 8§24
Basilg, LA 70515
337-305-5917

2720 W. Stagg Avenue
Basile, LA 70515
337-247-2171

P.O. Box 811
Basile, LA 70515
337-466-0797

2135 Dr. B. Deshoicl Avenue
Basile, LA 70515
337-446-8162

Compensation

3,245

3.245

3.245

5 38,617



TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Meters and Rates and Accounts Receivable
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Total Water Melers

Meters %" 735
Meters 2" 25
Mecters 4" 3
Meters 1" 2

TOTAL 815
Water Rates

Effective 05/01/19 10 03/31/22

Residential rates $21.00 First 2000 Gallons $3.00 Per Thousand Afier
Commercial rates $23.00 First 2000 Gallons $6.00 Per Thousand Aflter

Effective 04/01/2022 to current

Residential rates $22.58 First 2000 Gallons $5.79 Per Thousand After
Commercial rates $24.58 First 2000 Gallons $6.72 Per Thousand A fter

Customer Deposits

Effective 8/11/09

Renters: 3150 - Gas
$200 — Water

Homeowners:  $100 — Gas
$100 — Water

Amounts Receivable (Water, Gas, Sewer)

Daxs Amounts

0-30 S 97,942
31-60 727
61-90 8,279

$ 106,948

Residential Users - 737
Commercial Users — 55
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Insurance

CNA
Insurance

Lloyd’s
Lane &
Associates

LA Risk
Management
Agency

LA Risk
Management
Agency

LA Risk
Management
Agency

LA Workers'
Compensation
Corporation

Lloyd's
Lane &
Associates

TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA

Schedule ol Insurance

Year Ended Junc 30, 2022

Coverage

Employce
Dishonesty
Bond

Aulo

Commercial Premiscs
General Medical
Liability FFire

Police
Comprehensive
Liability

Public
Officials
Errors / Omissions

Workers

Compensation

Building & Equipment
inland Matine

08

Limiis
$300.000
$140,000

$1,500,000

$500,000
$ 10,000
$ 50,000

$500,000

$500,000

Stawutory

51.018.600
$25.000

Policy Period

11/16/21-11/16/22

1/03/22 - 1/03/23

9/13/21 - 9/13/22

5/01/22-5/G1/23

5/01/22 - 5/01/23

5/01/22 - 5101723

1401721 - 1/01/22

8/01/21-8/01/22
8/01/21-8/01/22



TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments 10
Agency Head or Chiel Executive Officer
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Mark Denette, Mayor
Period: 12 Months

Salary $22.392
Benefils — retirement 2,615
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TOWN OF BASILE, LOUISTANA
Justice System Funding Scheduk - Collecting/Disbursing Entity
As Requured by Act 87 ol the 2020 Regular Session
(ash Basis Presentation
Year Ended June 30, 2022

First Six Second Six
Month Period  Month Period
Ended Ended
12/31/21 06/30/22
Beginning Balance of Amounts Collected (i.e. cash on hand) $ - 3
Add: Collections
Crimmal Court Cosis/Fees 26,848 17,707
Crimmal Fines - Other 35,019 36,401
Service/Collection I'ees (i.e. 3rd party scrvice fee) 473 534
Subtotal Coflections 62,340 54,642
Less: Disbursements To Governments & Nonprofits:
LA Comm on Law Enforcement - Crininal IFines Other 759 537
LA Supreme Couwrt - Criminal I'ines Other 154 108
CMIS, Judicial Adm. Supreme Court - Criminal Fines Other 308 219
LDH-THSCI Trust Fund - Criminal Fines Other 360 330
Acadiana Crime Lab - Criminal Fines Other 5,337 4,330
Less: Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency
Criminal Fines Other 35,019 36,401
Court Costs 19,895 12,148
Less: Disbursements to Individuals/3rd Party Collection or
Processing Agencics
Witness Fees 35 35
Payments 1o 3rd Party Collection/Processing Agencies 473 534
Subtotal Disbursements/Retainage 62,340 54,642
Total: Ending Balance of Amounts Collected but not
Disbursed/Retained (i.¢e. cash on hand) $ - 5 -
Other Information:
Ending Balance of Total Amounts Assessed but not vet
Collected (i.e. receivable balance) $ - $ -
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MAVOR TOWN OF BASILE

Mark Denette _
3211 RAILROAD STRCET
CLERKS P.O. BOX 308
BASILE. LA 70515-0308
clerk@iownofbasile.com
PHONE: 337-432-6693
FAX: 337-432-5448

Heather Putnam-Lantz
Page Berirand

VIGE, TUIAGUE & NOEL, CPA’S
P. C. BOX 1005
EUNICE, LA 70535

RE: Management Response

TOWN COUNCIL

Kenny Burgess
Catina Heberl
Latoya Howze
Kristy Miller
Carmen Cortez

The following are our respenses to your recommendations we received in the Town’s Audited Financial Statement

as of June 30, 2022.

2022-001 Segregation of Duties

We are aware of and have evalualed this inadequacy and concluded that the related costs versus benefits to
be achieved do not justify the additional personnel it would require to establish an adequate segregation of
duties. However, we will try 10 segregale dulies as much as possible with the existing stafT.

2022-002 — Budget Variance

The Town will make the necessary amendments to the budget prior 1o year end for changes in revenues and

expenditures incurred.

Mark D_tenétlc, Ma-yor

This institlution is an equal opportunity provider,
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VIGE, TUJAGUE &% NOEL

A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
151 N. 250 STREET

P. 0. BOX 1006
EUNICE, LOUISIANA 70535
SHIRLEY VIGE, JR., C.PA. TELEPHONE:
FRANK G. TUJAGUE, C.PA. 337-457-9324
DOMINIQUE M. NOEL, C.P.A. FAX:

337-457-8743

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

To the Management and Board of Commissioners of the Town of Basile, Louisiana and the
Louisiana Legislative Auditor:

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s (LLLA’s) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures
(SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. Town of Basile, Louisiana’s
management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs.

Town of Basile, Louisiana has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are
appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified
procedures on the C/C areas identified in LLA’s SAUPs for the fiscal period July 1, 2021 through
June 30, 2022. Additionally, LLLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed
are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The
procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not
meet the needs of all users of this report and. as such, users are responsible for determining whether
the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes.

The procedures and associated findings are as follows:

Written Policies and Procedures

1. Obtain and inspect the entity’s written policies and procedures and observe whether they
address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and
the entity’s operations:

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget.

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

b) Purchasing. including (1) how purchases are initiated: (2) how vendors are added to the
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase



d)

)

g)

h)

1)

orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes.

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving.

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits.  Also,
policies and procedures should include management’s actions to determine the
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g.,
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture
monies confirmation).

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for
employee(s) rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules.

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms
and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process.

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards
are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4)
required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the
reasonableness of fuel card purchases).

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required
approvers.

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.)
42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to
monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation 1s maintained
to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity’s
ethics policy.

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements.

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.
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k) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1)

1)

identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a
separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that
backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application
of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel,
processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event.

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting.

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.

Board (or Finance Committee, if applicable)

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the
board’s enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal
period, and:

a)

b)

Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a
frequency in accordance with the board’s enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other
equivalent document.

Obtained and reviewed minutes of the managing board for the fiscal period noting that the
board met monthly.

For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund,
quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget-
to-actual, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds.

Obtained and reviewed minutes of the managing board for the fiscal period noting that the
minutes do include monthly budget-to-actual comparisons.

For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned
fund balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund
balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting
during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative
unassigned fund balance in the general fund.

Obtained the prior year audit report and observed that the unassigned fund balance was a
positive balance.

Bank Reconciliations

3. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and
management’s representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the
entity’s main operating account. Select the entity’s main operating account and randomly

3|Page



select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from
the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for
each selected account, and observe that:

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged);

Bank reconciliations were not prepared within 2 months of the related statement closing
date.

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who
does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation
(e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and

Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management who does not handle
cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank statement, but not each
reconciliation.

¢) Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have
been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable.

Bank reconciliations do not include evidence that management has researched reconciling
items that have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date.

Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers)

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money
orders (cash) are prepared and management’s representation that the listing is complete.
Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5).

Obtained a listing of deposit sites from management and management provided representation
that the listing is complete.

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management’s
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each
deposit site (i.e., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies
and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of
employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are
properly segregated at each collection location such that:

a) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers.

Employees responsible for cash collections do share cash drawers/registers; however, the
Town of Basile does not accept receipts in the form of cash. Collections are reconciled at
the end of the day by an emplovee who did not collect the receipts.

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making
bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection
documentation (e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit.
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The employees responsible for collecting cash are responsible for preparing/making bank
deposits, however, each employees collections are reconciled by another employee daily.

¢) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit.

Employees responsible for collecting cash are responsible for posting collection entries to
the general ledger or subsidiary ledger. The clerk reconciles the postings to each other and

the deposit.
d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or

subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, are not responsible for
collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the reconciliation.

Employees responsible for collecting cash are responsible for reconciling cash collections
to the general ledger: however another employee/official verifies the reconciliation.

Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all
employees who have access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for theft was
enforced during the fiscal period.

Emplovees who have access to cash are covered by the bond or insurance policy for theft.

Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3
under “Bank Reconciliations” above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits
were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits
are made on the same day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other
than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection
log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the
10 deposits and:

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered.

Observed that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered.

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection
documentation to the deposit slip.

Traced receipts or collection documentation to the deposit slip with no exceptions.

¢) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement.

Traced the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement with no exceptions.

d) Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the
deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer).

Observed that deposits were not made within one business day of receipt at the collection
location.
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e¢) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger.

Traced the actual deposits per the bank statement to the general ledger noting no
exceptions.

Non-Payroll Disbursements — General (excluding card purchases/payments, travel
reimbursements, and petty cash purchases)

8.

10.

Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management’s
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less
than 5).

Obtained a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management’s
representation that the listing is complete.

For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with
non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures
relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire
of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such
that:

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase,
and placing an order/making the purchase.

Obtained written policies and procedures and observed that job duties are properly
segregated regarding the functions noted above.

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors.

Obtained written policies and procedures and observed that job duties are properly
segregated regarding the functions noted above.

¢) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to
vendor files.

Obtained written policies and procedures and observed that job duties are properly
seoregated regarding the functions noted above.

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the
signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments.

Obtained written policies and procedures and observed that job duties are properly
segregated regarding the functions noted above.

For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity’s non-payroll disbursement
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management’s
representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each
location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and:
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a) Observe whether the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice and
supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received by
the entity.

Observed that the disbursements matched the related original itemized invoice and the
supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received.

b) Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date,
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable.

Observed that the disbursement documentation included evidence of segregation of duties
tested.

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards

11.

12.

[ 2

Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and
P-cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons
who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management’s representation that the listing
is complete.

Obtained a listing of all active credit cards and management’s representation that the listing is
complete.

Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5)
that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined
statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain
supporting documentation, and:

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception
reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or
electronically approved), by someone other than the authorized card holder.

No exceptions noted.

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements.

Finance charges were assessed on the one of the selected statements.

Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding
fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each
statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e., each card should
have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observe it is supported by (1) an
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written
documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals
participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should
describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management had a compensating
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control to address missing receipts, such as a “missing receipt statement” that is subject to
increased scrutiny.

No exceptions noted.

Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions)

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements
during the fiscal period and management’s representation that the listing or general ledger is
complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement
forms/prepaid expense documentation of each seclected reimbursement, as well as the
supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected:

Obtained a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements and management’s
representation that the listing is complete.

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than
those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services
Administration (Www.gsa.gov).

No exceptions noted.

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe the reimbursement is supported by an original
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased.

No exceptions noted.

¢) Observe ecach reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure
#1h).

No exceptions noted.

d) Observe each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other
than the person receiving reimbursement.

No exceptions noted.

Contracts

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services,
materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during
the fiscal period. Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as
an active vendor list. Obtain management’s representation that the listing is complete.
Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the
practitioner’s contract, and:
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b)

d)

Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law
(e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law.

Observed that the contracts were not required to be bid in accordance with the Louisiana
Public Bid Law.

Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by
policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter).

Observed that the contracts were approved by the board.

If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe the original contract terms
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the
contract terms (e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, was approval documented).

Observed that no contracts were amended.

Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe the invoice and
related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract.

Randomly selected one payment from each of the contracts tested, and observed that the
invoice and payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract.

Payroll and Personnel

16. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and
management’s representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or
officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized
salaries/pay rates in the personnel files.

7

Obtained a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period. and

management provided representation that the listing is complete. Randomly selected 5

emplovees and agreed paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files.

Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials
selected under #16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay
period, and:

a)

b)

Observe all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave
(e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, officials are not eligible to earn
leave and do not document their attendance and leave. However, if the official is earning
leave according to a policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her daily
attendance and leave.)

Observed that all selected emplovees documented their daily attendance and leave.

Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees
or officials.

Observed that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees.
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¢) Observe any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity’s
cumulative leave records.

Observed that leave accrued and taken during the pay period is reflected in the cumulative
leave records.

d) Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate
found within the personnel file.

Observed that the rate paid to emplovees agrees to the authorized salary/pay rate found
within the personnel file.

18. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the
fiscal period and management’s representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two
employees or officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in
management’s termination payment calculations and the entity’s policy on termination
payments. Agree the hours to the employee or officials’ cumulative leave records, agree the
pay rates to the employee or officials” authorized pay rates in the employee or officials’
personnel files, and agree the termination payment to entity policy.

No exceptions noted.

19. Obtain management’s representation that employer and employee portions of third-party
payroll related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance
premiums, garnishments, workers” compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any
associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines.

Management provided representation that emplover and employee portions of third-party
payroll related amounts have been paid. and any associated forms have been filed, by required
deadlines.

Ethics

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under “Payroll and
Personnel™ above' obtain ethics documentation from management, and:

a. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one
hour of ethics training during the fiscal period.

Two out of the five employees selected for testing had documentation to demonstrate that
the required ethics training was completed.

b. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee
and official were notified of any changes to the entity’s ethics policy during the fiscal
period, as applicable.

There were no changes made to the entity’s ethics policy during the fiscal year.
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Debt Service

21,

22,

Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and
management’s representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments on the
listing, obtain supporting documentation. and observe State Bond Commission approval was
obtained for each debt instrument issued.

Management has asserted that the Entity did not have any debt issued during the fiscal year.

Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management’s
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt
covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree
actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including
contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants).

Obtained a listing of notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal year and managements
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly selected one note for inspection and
determined that all reserve balances and payments required by debt covenants were made.

Fraud Notice

23.

24.

Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and
management’s representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the
entity is domiciled.

Management has asserted that the Entity did not have any misappropriations of public funds
or assets during the reporting period.

Observe the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds.

Observed that the entity has posted on its premises. the required notice.

Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity

23,

Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and
report “We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.”

a) Obtain and inspect the entity’s most recent documentation that it has backed up its
critical data (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for backing
up critical data) and observe that such backup occurred within the past week. If
backups are stored on a physical medium (e.g., tapes. CDs). observe evidence that
backups are encrypted before being transported.

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.
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b) Obtain and inspect the entity’s most recent documentation that it has tested/verified
that its backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel
responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the
test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months.

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.

¢) Obtain a listing of the entity’s computers currently in use and their related locations,
and management’s representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5
computers and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers
have current and active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting
system software in use are currently supported by the vendor.

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.

Sexual Harassment

26.

21

28.

Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under “Payroll and
Personnel” above, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and
observe the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour
of sexual harassment training during the calendar year.

Three of the five employees selected for testing had documentation to demonstrate that the
required sexual harassment training was complete.

Observe the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its
website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity’s premises if the entity does not have a
website).

Observed that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on
the entity’s premises.

Obtain the entity’s annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that
the report was dated on or before February 1, and observe it includes the applicable
requirements of R.S. 42:344:

Management did not prepare the annual sexual harassment report; however, management
stated that there were no sexual harassment complaints.

a) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the
training requirements;

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency;

¢) Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred;

d) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline
or corrective action; and

e) Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint.

12| Page



Management’s Response

Management of the Town of Basile, Louisiana concurs with the exceptions and is working
to address the deficiencies identified.

We were engaged by Town of Basile, Louisiana to perform this agreed-upon procedures
engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government
Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review
engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion,
respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come
to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are required to be independent of Town of Basile, Louisiana and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon
procedures engagement.

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document.

Vige. Mujague &
Eunice, Louisiana
October 27, 2022
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